COTTAGE GROVE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES JUNE 27, 2022

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Jeff Gowing called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm in the Council Chambers at City Hall.

ROLL CALL

City Recorder Mindy Roberts called the roll. The following were

PRESENT IN THE

Mayor Gowing, Councilors Candace Solesbee, Chalice Savage,

COUNCIL CHAMBERS:

Mike Fleck, Jon Stinnett, Greg Ervin, and Kenneth Michael

Roberts

PRESENT VIA

GOTOMEETING:

None

COUNCIL ABSENT:

YOUTH

REPRESENTATIVE:

STAFF PRESENT IN

THE COUNCIL

CHAMBERS:

City Manager Richard Meyers, Assistant to the City Manager Jake

Boone, City Recorder Mindy Roberts, Public Works &

Development Director Faye Stewart, Police Chief Scott Shepherd

and Finance Director Roberta Likens

STAFF PRESENT

VIA GOTOMEETING:

CITY ATTORNEY:

MEDIA PRESENT:

Cameron Reiten, KNND Radio and Damien Sherwood and Sarah

Glass, The Sentinel

ITEMS ADDED TO THE AGENDA

- (a) Approval of OLCC Liquor License Annual Renewal to the Consent Agenda.
- (b) Request from Economic Development Administration for City of Cottage Grove to be coapplicant with Bohemia Foundation on competitive tourism grant application.

IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR FLECK AND SECONDED BY COUNCILOR ERVIN TO ADD THE TWO PROPOSED ITEMS TO THE AGENDA.

Mayor Gowing announced the motion with a second and called the vote.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

VOTE	Councilor Roberts	Councilor Stinnett	Councilor Savage	Councilor Fleck	Councilor Solesbee	Councilor Ervin	Mayor Gowing
AYES	X	Х	Х	X	X	Х	X
NAYS							
ABSTAIN							

APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

Kathleen Matteson 1740 Bryant Ave, Cottage Grove, Oregon spoke against agenda items popping up before meetings, Work Sessions not being mentioned until the last minute, progressive, liberal agendas and having a homeless shelter at the Nazarene Church.

Merv Kwandt 1420 Anthony Ave, Cottage Grove, Oregon spoke against having a homeless shelter at the site of the Nazarene Church.

Mike Grover 906 Grover Ave, Cottage Grove, Oregon spoke against using the site of the Nazarene Church for a homeless shelter.

Art Lancaster 16th Street, Cottage Grove, Oregon spoke against a homeless shelter at the site of the Nazarene Church.

Chuck Howe 105 North H Street, Cottage Grove, Oregon spoke against a homeless shelter at the Nazarene Church site.

Mike Lancaster 1525 Anthony Ave., Cottage Grove, Oregon spoke against creating a homeless shelter.

Martin Garriott 1312 Bryant Ave., Cottage Grove, Oregon spoke against a homeless shelter at the Nazarene Church site and asked if the City is prepared to offset the loss of property values in the neighborhood.

Curtis Chewning 222 South N Street, Cottage Grove, Oregon spoke against a homeless shelter at the site of the Nazarene Church and suggested using the Disc Golf Course or the Armory.

Carol Woodman 1630 Bryant Ave., Cottage Grove, Oregon spoke in reference to a Councilors comments that were quoted in the Sentinel and against a homeless shelter at the site of the Nazarene Church.

Darrel Wilson 1650 Bryant Ave., Cottage Grove, Oregon spoke against a homeless shelter at the Nazarene Church site.

Ted Daze 1329 Bryant Ave., Cottage Grove, Oregon spoke against creating a homeless shelter in a residential neighborhood.

Ace Thayer 47 South M Street, Cottage Grove, Oregon spoke against creating a homeless shelter at the site of the Nazarene Church.

Johanna Zee 1386 Cottonwood, Cottage Grove, Oregon spoke against a Federally Qualified Health Clinic. She presented the City Recorder with signature petition sheets addressed to the City Council and Mayor to not publicly support or contribute financially to the project.

Brad Pennington 1548 Bryant Ave., Cottage Grove, Oregon spoke against having a homeless shelter at the site of the Nazarene Church.

Councilor Savage stepped out of the Council Chambers at 8:00 pm.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

None

CONSENT AGENDA

- (a) Approval of June 6, 2022 Work Session Minutes
- (b) Approval of June 10, 2022 Agenda Session Minutes

IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR FLECK AND SECONDED BY COUNCILOR ROBERTS TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA.

Mayor Gowing announced the motion with a second and called for discussion. Seeing none he called the vote.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

VOTE	Councilor Roberts	Councilor Stinnett	Councilor Savage	Councilor Fleck	Councilor Solesbee	Councilor Ervin	Mayor Gowing
AYES	X	X		X	X	X	X
NAYS							
ABSTAIN							

RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES

(a) Resolution Authorizing an Interfund Loan to the Industrial Park Fund from the Storm Drain Reserve Fund.

Finance Director Roberta Likens presented background information from the Staff Memorandum regarding the proposed resolution.

Councilor Savage returned to the Council Chambers at 8:02 pm

IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR FLECK AND SECONDED BY COUNCILOR ERVIN TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2072.

Mayor Gowing announced the motion with a second and called for discussion. Seeing none he called the vote.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

VOTE	Councilor Roberts	Councilor Stinnett	Councilor Savage	Councilor Fleck	Councilor Solesbee	Councilor Ervin	Mayor Gowing
AYES	X	X	X	X	X	X	X
NAYS							
ABSTAIN							

Mayor Gowing announced Resolution 2072 carried.

(b) Resolution Transferring Appropriations within the Building Inspection Program Fund and the Wastewater Fund – Wastewater Treatment Department.

Finance Director Roberta Likens presented background information from the Staff Memorandum regarding the proposed resolution.

IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR FLECK AND SECONDED BY COUNCILOR ROBERTS TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2073.

Mayor Gowing announced the motion with a second and called for discussion. Seeing none he called the vote.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

VOTE	Councilor Roberts	Councilor Stinnett	Councilor Savage	Councilor Fleck	Councilor Solesbee	Councilor Ervin	Mayor Gowing
AYES	X	X	X	X	Х	X	Х
NAYS							
ABSTAIN							

Mayor Gowing announced Resolution 2073 carried.

(c) A Resolution Establishing Appropriations within the General Fund for the Expenditure of an Unforeseen Specific Purpose Grant from the American Rescue Plan Act.

Finance Director Roberta Likens presented background information from the Staff Memorandum regarding the proposed Resolution.

Councilor Ervin said that the Resolution states, grant funds will be used for the purpose stated, and asked if that purpose is to put the money into the Contingency line.

Finance Director said the Contingency is being increased by \$692,506 and will be carried forward to next fiscal year and the money has not been designated other than a Contingency line item.

IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR FLECK AND SECONDED BY COUNCILOR ERVIN TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2074.

Mayor Gowing announced the motion with a second and called for discussion.

Councilor Roberts said that the Budget Committee voted against the funding of the Health Clinic and asked how it was back in the Budget.

City Manager replied that topic is the next resolution.

Finance Director replied that the funding of the Clinic is not in the next resolution either.

Mayor Gowing called for any further discussion. Seeing none he called the vote.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

VOTE	Councilor Roberts	Councilor Stinnett	Councilor Savage	Councilor Fleck	Councilor Solesbee	Councilor Ervin	Mayor Gowing
AYES	X	X	X	X	X	X	Х
NAYS							
ABSTAIN							

Mayor Gowing announce Resolution 2074 carried.

(d) Resolution Adopting the 2022-23 Budget, Making Appropriations, and Imposing and Categorizing Ad Valorem Taxes.

Finance Director Roberta Likens presented background information from the Staff Memorandum regarding the proposed resolution. She outlined changes to the Budget recommended by staff and funding requests from the Public.

Steve Williamson 1282 Taft, Eugene, Oregon President of Singing Creek Educational Center explained the reason for the funding request and asked for Council support.

Councilor Ervin asked if anyone can attend the camp and what happens to the funding if the camp is not able to take place.

Steve Williamson said the camps are primarily for Spanish and Guatemalan speaking children. He said if the camps do not take place they would come back to Council and request that the money be rolled over to another program.

Councilor Fleck announced that he has a Conflict of Interest because Community Sharing is a line item in the Community Promotions section of the Budget. He said if that section comes up for discussion he will recuse himself from that item. Councilor Fleck said he believes that most of the Council supports the changes to the items that Staff has presented. He suggested that Council leave any item related to sheltering in the Contingency line and added that he is uncertain about supporting the South Lane Farmers Market. He said he supports the funding for Singing Creek Summer Camp and the South Lane Federally Qualified Health Clinic.

Councilor Solesbee said she has concerns about the Health Care Clinic. She said she believes that the Community needs Health Care but there is a shortage of doctors and health care nurses and the biggest challenge would be staffing. She added that we do not need another facility, we need staffing. She said Council needs to be fiscally responsible. She added that fuel costs are up \$95,000 and Council is being asked to give \$100,000 for the Health Clinic and she does not know if we can afford to.

Councilor Roberts said it is his understanding that the Federally Qualified Health Clinic is going to happen whether the City supports it or not, and he would rather see the \$100,000 go to other things. He said he supports the South Lane Farmers Market, but \$5,000 is too much.

Councilor Savage said she supports the Federally Qualified Health Clinic and the educational component it offers.

Councilor Stinnett declared a Potential Conflict of Interest with regards to the line item supporting the Main Street Program. He said he supports funding the South Lane Federally Qualified Health Clinic, South Lane Farmers Market, and the Singing Creek Summer Camp.

Councilor Ervin said he supports funding the Singing Creek Summer Camp and the South Lane Farmers Market. He added that he wants more information regarding the Federally Qualified Health Clinic (FQHC) and will seek out answers to his questions.

Councilor Fleck said that he is okay waiting to make a decision on the FQHC. He said he wants to show support and is willing to compromise on the amount and suggested also lowering the amount of support for the South Lane Farmers Market.

Councilor Roberts suggested \$3000 for the South Lane Farmers Market.

IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR ERVIN AND SECONDED BY COUNCILOR FLECK TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2075 BY KEEPING THE AMOUNT FOR THE FEDERALLY QUALIFIED HEALTH CLINIC IN THE CONTINGENCY LINE, ALLOCATING \$3000 TO SOUTH LANE FARMERS MARKET, ALLOCATING \$1870 FOR SINGING CREEK SUMMER CAMP AND INCLUDING THE PROPOSED CHANGES FROM THE CITY.

Mayor Gowing announced the motion with a second and called for any further discussion.

Councilor Savage inquired about the motion made by Dana Merryday at the Budget Committee meeting for \$10,000 to be allocated.

Councilor Fleck said that the motion was for Looking Glass.

Councilor Savage asked if that was in the Budget.

City Manager said it is not in the Budget. He said the City gave Looking Glass \$15,000 last year to get their project started and added that it is a great project.

Councilor Roberts asked if there was money in the Contingency that could be allocated to Looking Glass in the future.

City Manager said there is a line item for Looking Glass, there is Contingency funds and it could be looked at later in the year.

Councilor Ervin asked if Looking Glass could be added as an Agenda item so that Council remembers to consider it.

Councilor Stinnett asked what the procedure would be to make sure that Council follows up.

Councilor Ervin asked if he needs to amend his motion.

City Manager said no, it can be added to the Agenda.

Mayor Gowing called for any further discussion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

VOTE	Councilor Roberts	Councilor Stinnett	Councilor Savage	Councilor Fleck	Councilor Solesbee	Councilor Ervin	Mayor Gowing
AYES	X	X	X	X	X	X	X
NAYS							
ABSTAIN	i				700	=	

Mayor Gowing announced Resolution 2075 carried.

(e) Resolution Amending the Comprehensive Fee Schedule.

Public Works and Development Director Faye Stewart presented background information regarding the five year Utility Rate Financial Plan proposed by the FCS Group. He said the Resolution amends the Comprehensive Fee Schedule to establish rates for the City's Utility System. He added that the monthly Water and Storm Drainage rates remain unchanged and the monthly Wastewater rate will increase by 12% reflecting the adopted five year Utility Rate Financial Plan.

IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR FLECK AND SECONDED BY COUNCILOR ERVIN TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NUMBER 2076.

Mayor Gowing announced the motion with a second and called for discussion. Seeing none he called the vote.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

VOTE	Councilor Roberts	Councilor Stinnett	Councilor Savage	Councilor Fleck	Councilor Solesbee	Councilor Ervin	Mayor Gowing
AYES	X	X	X	X	X	X	X
NAYS						*	
ABSTAIN							

Mayor Gowing announced Resolution 2076 carried.

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY COUNCIL

(a) Overnight Camping Program

City Manager Richard Meyers outlined a draft proposal for an Overnight Camping Program.

Councilor Roberts stepped out of the Council Chambers at 8:46 pm.

City Manager explained that the program would allow private property owners, businesses, non-profits and individuals to allow camping on their property. He continued by explaining some of the allowances and definitions.

Councilor Roberts reentered the Council Chambers at 8:49 pm.

City Manager added that there is a prohibition on property owners receiving compensation. He said the program is not a method for property owners to charge rent or get services in lieu of having someone stay on their property. He added that the property owner can require them to take care of the site. City Manager opened the discussion for Councilors questions.

Councilor Ervin asked questions regarding pallet shelters, large hunting tents and various restrictions.

City Manager said that you could set parameters on the size of the tents allowed.

Councilor Ervin asked about restricting a large motorhome.

City Manager said he would suggest setting the parameters around tent size.

Councilor Ervin said there are some structures around town that are dilapidated and asked if they would be allowed or if they would fall under a housing standard.

City Manager said this program is limited to vehicles and tents. He added that garden sheds or accessory dwelling units are not included.

Councilor Fleck asked about Section 8.40.60 regarding revoking. He said it mentions incompatible with the uses of adjacent properties or constitutes a nuisance or other threat to public welfare. He asked how noise, smoke or other things would be dealt with.

City Manager said the references to nuisances would be the same as in the City Code.

Councilor Fleck said that the likes the idea of setting a size parameter on tents.

City Manager said that duration could possibly be considered also.

Mayor Gowing asked if 200 square feet could be the size parameter.

Councilor Solesbee clarified the amount of campers allowed and where they can be located.

City Manager said it can be one family in a tent on a residential lot and two on a non-profit or business lot. He added that the tent must be in the back yard on a residential lot.

Councilor Fleck asked about motorhomes.

City Manager said vehicles, excluding tents can be in the driveway.

Councilor Solesbee asked what size can be in the driveway.

City Manager said it must be in the driveway and cannot hang over the sidewalk.

Councilor Solesbee asked about the process for eviction.

City Manager said it would be based on neighborhood complaints and City or Police observations.

Councilor Savage asked if there is a cost to file an application.

City Manager replied no.

Councilor Stinnett asked how the City would enforce the definition of family and the number of people.

City Manager said you could put a number on the size of the family or relate it to the size of what they are living in.

Mayor Gowing asked if it could be left as it is, and readdress if a problem comes up.

Councilor Stinnett said by limiting the size of the structure we are actually limiting the number of people.

City Manager said that the size of the tent may self-limit the number of people. He added that the application will request information regarding the number of people and type of vehicle.

Mayor Gowing entertained a motion.

City Manager said a motion is not needed. He said Staff will make the recommended changes and bring it back to Council.

Public Works and Development Director Faye Stewart clarified that this program would not allow them to hook up to Water and Sewer.

City Manager replied no, they cannot hook up to Water/Sewer but the property owner does need to provide toilet and sanitary services. He added that self-contained motor homes would have to move off location to dump.

Councilor Ervin asked if they could have water hooked up to a camper.

Public Works and Development Director and City Manager explained the concern is the lack of backflow devices and where they would dispose of waste. City Manager said they could fill the tank and not leave it connected.

Councilor Savage asked if a certain number of complaints would warrant a revisit of the application.

City Manager said the City would look at the severity of the complaint or nuisance.

Mayor Gowing called for any further discussion.

(b) Electric Scooters

City Manager Richard Meyers informed Council of the request from Bird Rides, Inc. to consider allowing the placement of e-scooters in Cottage Grove. He referenced various material and draft ordinances provided to Council and discussed some of the approaches that could be taken.

Mayor Gowing said if Council takes action it should be a blanket policy for all, not just Bird.

Councilor Savage declared a Potential Conflict as her employer has been contacted as a possible partner with Bird.

Council Ervin said he is in general support of allowing e-scooters. He added that he is concerned about them laying around and suggested doing so by ordinance and to scrutinize the criteria around clean-up.

City Manager said the ordinance could be adjusted if we need to address different situations as they arise, whereas with an agreement, the City may have more difficulty.

Councilor Roberts asked if it is possible to do a trial run or if we have to guarantee to get a certain number of e-scooters.

City Manager replied that the City is not working with the e-scooter company. He said this would be a way to monitor, regulate and control what is happening. He added that we could set up a licensing fee, licensing requirements and even a percentage of their charges to go to bike paths or parks.

Councilor Roberts asked if the City finds a third party if we could do a test run to see how it goes.

City Manager replied that the City would not be determining the number of e-scooters.

Mayor Gowing said Bird is looking for the City to approve the use of e-scooters. He added that Bird will find an entrepreneur to be a fleet manager.

Councilor Fleck said he agrees with using an ordinance and if we have a good vendor it should mitigate any problems. He said he thinks there should be a nominal fee but he is not interested in making revenue from it.

City Manager said Council could require licensing but the City has moved away from doing that in other situations.

Councilor Ervin asked if the licensing is for individual scooters or the company.

City Manager replied, the company.

Councilor Fleck asked if we should limit the number.

Mayor Gowing said the customer base will dictate the number.

Councilor Solesbee said there should be some sort of fee and she likes the idea of it going towards the bike paths.

Councilor Stinnett said he supports the concept in general and it presents many opportunities.

Councilor Ervin asked if we should draft an ordinance that would carry over to e-bikes.

City Manager said part of this ordinance covers how they would be operated and we already have an ordinance that covers bikes. He said the City would need to look at State Law and he believes e-bikes are considered bikes unless the size of the motor and power is higher.

Councilor Ervin clarified that this ordinance is about companies running scooter rentals.

City Manager said if you had a company like Arcimoto coming to town, they would not be on sidewalks or bike paths because they are street legal.

Councilor Fleck asked if we should add something regarding maintenance.

City Manager referred back to the Taxi Cab licensing and said when you require them to have safe brakes and tires, if there is an incident the City could end up being liable for the accident that occurred. He added that the Ordinance includes the company would have to indemnify the City.

Mayor Gowing asked if there was any further discussion.

(c) Request from Economic Development Administration for City of Cottage Grove to be co-applicant with Bohemia Foundation on competitive tourism grant application.

Public Works and Development Director Faye Stewart said that on October 11, 2021 City Council approved Resolution 2056. He added that the Resolution authorized support for an Economic Development Administration (EDA) Competitive Tourism Grant Application for development of the north end of Bohemia Park and approved providing in-kind matching funds for staffing support, utility and permit fees. He said that he has recently received a notice of further consideration from the EDA, asking for additional information and changes to the application. He said the letter from the EDA explains that in-kind matching is generally not allowed as a matter of policy, but the City could be added as a co-applicant and request EDA permission for force account work for the construction services.

Public Works and Development Director said the recommendation is that Council approve by motion to be a co-applicant with the Bohemia Foundation allowing the City's in-kind contribution to be potentially counted as a match to the EDA grant.

City Manager Richard Meyers added that the EDA has asked that we provide the information back to them within two weeks so that they can make final considerations.

IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR FLECK AND SECONDED BY COUNCILOR ROBERTS THAT COUNCIL APPROVE THE CITY TO BE A CO-APPLICANT WITH BOHEMIA FOUNDATION ALLOWING THE CITY'S IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS TO POTENTIALLY BE COUNTED AS A MATCH TO THE EDA GRANT.

Mayor Gowing announced the motion with a second and called for further discussion.

Councilor Ervin asked Faye Stewart to recap the project with the intended outcome of the use of the grant.

Faye Stewart replied that the north portion of the Park would be redeveloped to include a historical component that would capture the history of five different themes that established Cottage Grove and the South Willamette Valley. He said it would include a replica water tank that was used in steam railroad engines with an interactive water feature and splash pad. He added that there would be benches, hardscape, a swing set and additional playground equipment.

Councilor Roberts asked if Bohemia Park receives the grant if that would that help the City in its attempt to get the Main Street EDA grant.

City Manager said one aspect that makes this grant and the Main Street grant attractive for further consideration is that it is a revitalization of Main Street in a grander scale. City Manager displayed a map of Bohemia Park with the anticipated redevelopment on the Council Chambers monitors.

Mayor Gowing asked if there was any further discussion. Seeing none he called the vote.

Motion carried.

(d) Concerns from Council

Councilor Ervin asked about the possibility of creating a Parks Department as a taxing entity to bring in funds for Parks.

City Manager replied that the City has a Parks Department. He said it is not set up as a Parks District with a Board of Directors creating a taxing entity. He added that doing so would create compression and it would reduce taxes for the other entities like the Fire District, City, and non-school governmental agencies.

City Manager said the City has been exploring options with South Valley Athletics (SVA) to create the opportunity for the City, School District, and SVA to collaborate together rather than creating a separate board.

Councilor Solesbee expressed appreciation for community members coming to speak at Council and reminded them of the Work Session on July 18th.

Councilor Roberts thanked the citizens for voicing their concerns to Council and addressed being quoted in the newspaper.

Mayor Gowing informed Council that he attended the first Mayor's Task Force meeting regarding Homelessness and said he has a meeting Thursday with Pete Kerns from Serenity Lane. Mayor Gowing commended those who spoke at the meeting tonight for being respectful.

Councilor Fleck said the citizens comments tonight made it clear that people have not been following the Homelessness issue and he encouraged people to read all of the materials that have been presented. He added that nothing has been decided and there are many options to pursue.

Councilor Savage thanked the Community for speaking to Council and she understands the concerns expressed. She added that she is hearing a lot of concerns and would like to hear more solutions.

Mayor Gowing recessed the regular meeting at 9:37 pm to go into Executive Session.

Mayor Gowing reconvened the regular meeting at 10:40 pm.

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER

(a) Approval of and Authorization for City Manager to Enter into Collective Bargaining Agreement with the Laborers Local NO. 737 General Unit

City Manager reviewed the wage changes, COLA adjustments, deferred compensation changes and the addition of bilingual pay for the Laborers Local NO. 737 General Unit.

IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR FLECK AND SECONDED BY COUNCILOR ERVIN TO APPROVE THE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT WITH THE LABORERS LOCAL NO 737 GENERAL UNIT AND AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO THE AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY.

Mayor Gowing announced the motion with a second and called for further discussion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

VOTE	Councilor Roberts	Councilor Stinnett	Councilor Savage	Councilor Fleck	Councilor Solesbee	Councilor Ervin	Mayor Gowing
AYES	X	X	X	X	X	X	X
NAYS							
ABSTAIN							

(b) Report from City Manager

City Manager Richard Meyers reminded Council of the Open House from 12:00 to 2:00 pm on July 7th at Harrison Village.

City Manager announced deadlines for presenters at the Work Session to submit materials. He said written materials are needed by July 12th at noon and Power Point or visual materials are needed by July 13th at 5:00 pm and can be submitted to the City Recorder or himself.

City Manager asked Council to become familiar with information regarding Ballot Measure 109 which legalized the use of Psilocybin. He added that there will be discussion at the July 11, 2022 City Council meeting regarding possible bans, ordinances and the opportunity to refer it to the voters.

City Manager reminded Council that at the July 25th meeting they will be discussing the League of Oregon Cities priorities, to review their packet and ask questions if needed.

BUSINESS FROM CITY ATTORNEY

None.	

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, Mayor Gowing adjourned the regular meeting of the City Council at 10:52 pm.

The next regular City Council Meeting will be held July 11, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at City Hall.

Mindy Roberts, City Recorder

Jeffrey D. Gowing, Mayor